

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

The City Council will consider adoption of this ordinance at its August 10, 2021 meeting.

CITY OF OAKDALE ORDINANCE xxx

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF OAKDALE, CHAPTER 9 – LICENSES AND BUSINESS REGULATIONS, ARTICLE 15 – MOBILE FOOD VENDORS.

The City Council of the City of Oakdale ordains:

Section 1. The Oakdale Code of Ordinances, Chapter 9, Article 15 is amended as follows:

Sec. 9-141. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases when used in this Article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Article, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.

- City – City of Oakdale, Minnesota.
- County Authority – Washington County Public Health and Environment.
- Issuing Authority – The City Administrator or his authorized designee.
- Local Authority – City of Oakdale, Minnesota.
- Mobile Food Vehicle - Any vehicle or trailer used for the purpose of selling more than two ~~(2)~~ types of food or beverage prepared inside the vehicle and ready to be consumed while the vehicle is parked.
- Mobile Food Vehicle License – A ~~Mobile Food Vehicle License~~ license issued under this Article that is valid during the licensing term.
- State Authority – Minnesota Department of Health or Minnesota Department of Agriculture.
- ~~Temporary Mobile Food Vehicle License – A one (1) day Mobile Food Vehicle License valid for the day(s) for which it is issued.~~

Sec. 9-142. License Required. It is unlawful for any person to operate a Mobile Food Vehicle without being issued a license from the City. Operations meeting the definition of a Mobile Food Vehicle and operating under a valid Mobile Food Vehicle License do not need a Peddler’s license under Section 9-69(b) of the City Code.

Sec. 9-143. License Requirements.

- (a) **Application.** Application for a Mobile Food Vehicle License will be made on forms supplied by the City. All ~~registration and license applications and associated required materials~~ and associated required materials must be submitted to the Issuing Authority a minimum of ~~fifteen (15) regular~~ fifteen (15) regular business days before the applicant desires to begin conducting business within the City. ~~No license will be issued for any activity that does not adhere to this requirement.~~ The Issuing Authority may require such information on the application as it deems reasonable and necessary.
- ~~(b) **Fee.** All applications for a license shall be accompanied by a fee established by the City Council.~~
- ~~(c)~~ (b) **Licensing Procedure.** Upon receipt of the application and of the license fee, the Issuing Authority will, within two ~~(2)~~ two (2) regular business days, determine if the application is

complete. An application will be considered complete if all required information is provided. If an application is determined incomplete, the Issuing Authority must inform the applicant of that required, or otherwise necessary information is missing. If the application is complete, the Issuing Authority staff will forward the application to any other City departments ~~that would be deemed as necessary~~ to conduct inspections and to verify eligible zoning locations. Within ~~fifteen~~ (15) regular business days of receiving a complete application, the Issuing Authority must issue the license unless grounds exist for denying the license application under Sec. 9-145.

~~(d)~~ **Duration.** Licenses may be issued on an annual or per day basis. Applicants may choose one from the two (2) types of Mobile Food Vehicle Licenses during the initial application process:

- ~~(1)~~ Mobile Food Vehicle Licenses shall only be valid for the licensing term. The licensing term shall begin on September 1 and run through August 31 of the following year.
- ~~(2)~~ Temporary Mobile Food Vehicle Licenses shall only be valid for the dates for which the license is issued.

~~(e)~~(c) **License Term.** All licenses issued under this article shall expire December 31.

~~(e)~~(d) **Display of License.** All licenses issued by the City shall be visibly displayed on the outside of the Mobile Food Vehicle at all times when conducting business in the City. ~~during business conduction.~~

Sec. 9-144. Licensing Exceptions. Mobile Food Vehicles participating in organized events ~~approved~~ sanctioned by the City shall be exempt from the licensing requirements of this Article.

Sec. 9-145. License Ineligibility. The following ~~are~~ should be grounds for denying issuance of a Mobile Food Vehicle License:

- (a) The failure of an applicant to obtain and demonstrate proof of all necessary licenses or permits required by state, county, or local health, ~~and or~~ transportation authorities.
- (b) The failure of an applicant to truthfully provide any information requested by the City as part of the application process.
- ~~(c)~~ The failure of an applicant to sign the license application.
- ~~(d)~~ The failure of an applicant to pay the required fee, (if any), at the time of application.
- ~~(e)~~ A conviction within the past five (5) years of the date of application for any violation of any federal or state statute or regulation, or of any local ordinance, which adversely reflects upon the person's ability to conduct the business for which the license is being sought in a professional, honest and legal manner. Such violations shall include, but are not limited to, burglary, theft, larceny, swindling, fraud, unlawful business practices, and any form of actual or threatened physical harm against another person or property.
- ~~(f)~~ The revocation within the past five (5) years of any similar licenses issued to an applicant.
- ~~(g)~~ (c) Evidence of any unresolved or ongoing government or legal action against the business filed by any state or government entity.
- ~~(h)~~ (d) The existence of three (3) or more substantiated complaints about the business conduct within the preceding three (3) years from city residents or other jurisdictions where licenses have been issued to the applicant.

- (~~h~~) (e) When the Issuing Authority has learned the applicant has changed any name or names relating to the applicant or business in an attempt to hide or escape any legal obligation(s).
- (~~i~~) (f) If after investigation, the Issuing Authority finds the character and business responsibility of the applicant to be unsatisfactory or a potential harm to the public.
- (~~k~~) (g) The failure to meet or comply with fire codes or safety standards upon inspection completed by any local, county, or state authorities.

Sec. 9-146. License Denial Procedure. If the City denies the license application, the applicant ~~must~~ shall be notified in writing of the decision and the reason(s) for denial. Notice shall be delivered in person, ~~or~~ by regular mail, or by email to the applicant at the address provided in the application and shall inform the applicant of the applicant's right to appeal the denial by requesting in writing, within ~~twenty~~ (20) days of receiving notice of denial, a hearing before the City Council. The City Council shall hear the appeal within ~~twenty~~ (20) days of the date of the request for a hearing.

Sec. 9-147. Suspension and Revocation.

- (a) **Generally.** Any license may be suspended or revoked at the discretion of the Issuing Authority for violation of any of the following:
 - 1) Subsequent knowledge by the city of fraud, misrepresentation or incorrect statements provided by an applicant on the application form.
 - 2) Fraud, misrepresentation or false statements made during the course of the licensed activity.
 - 3) Subsequent ~~conviction of any~~ offense to which the granting of the license could have been denied under Sec. 9-145.
 - 4) Engaging in any prohibited activity as provided under Sec. 9-149.
- (b) **Notice and Right to Hearing.** Prior to revoking or suspending any license, the Issuing Authority shall provide a license holder with written notice of the alleged violations and inform the licensee or registrant of his or her right to a hearing on the alleged violation. Notice shall be delivered in person, ~~or~~ by regular mail, or by email to the applicant at the address provided in the application and shall inform the applicant of the applicant's right to a hearing. If no request for a hearing is received within ~~ten~~ (10) days following the service of the notice, the Issuing Authority may proceed with the suspension or revocation. For the purpose of a mailed notice service shall be considered complete as of the date the notice is placed in the mail. If a hearing is requested within the stated time frame, a hearing shall be scheduled within ~~twenty~~ (20) days from the date of the request for the hearing.
- (c) **Emergency.** If, in the discretion of the Issuing Authority, imminent harm to the health or safety of the public may occur because of the actions of a Mobile Food Vehicle licensee, the Issuing Authority may immediately suspend the person's license and provide notice of the right to hold a subsequent hearing as prescribed in part (b) of this section.

Sec. 9-148. License or Registration Transferability. No license issued shall be transferred to any person other than the person to whom the license was issued.

Sec. 9-149. Restrictions. No Mobile Food Vehicle shall conduct business in any of the following manners ~~and~~ or in the following areas:

- (a) Calling attention to his or her business or the items to be sold by means of blowing any horn or whistle, ringing any bell, crying out, or by any other noise, so as to be unreasonably audible.
- (b) Obstructing the free flow of traffic, either vehicular or pedestrian, on any street, sidewalk, alleyway, or other public right-of-way.
- (c) Conducting business in a way as to create a threat to the health, safety and welfare of any specific individual or the general public.
- (d) Conducting business before 8 AM or after 8 PM, unless authorized by the Issuing Authority.
- (e) Failing to provide proof of license and identification when requested.
- (f) Using the license of another person and or of another Mobile Food Vehicle ~~license~~ licensee.
- (g) Alleging false or misleading statements about the products being sold, including untrue statements of endorsement. No Mobile Food Vehicle shall claim to have the endorsement of the City solely based on the City having issued a license to that person.
- (h) Remaining on the property of another when requested to leave or returning to that property after leaving, without written permission of the property owner.
- (i) Otherwise operating their business in any manner that ~~a reasonable person may be found to be find~~ obscene, threatening, intimidating or abusive.
- (j) Conducting business in a City park or parking lot at a City park unless authorized by the Issuing Authority.
- ~~k) Operate business less than two thousand (2,000) feet away when there is a permit issued for another food or similar permitted event, festival, celebration, or tournament at the same location.~~
- ~~(k) Operating business less than 2,000 feet away from a permitted event.~~
- ~~(l) Operating business less than 200 feet from any food service premises, unless with approval from the owner of the food service premise(s) or retail center.~~
- ~~(m)~~ (m) Failing to maintain mobile food vehicle in good repair, order, and neat appearance.
- ~~(n)~~ (n) Failing to clean up and properly dispose of trash and debris in the vicinity of the around their mobile food vehicle at the end of each business day.
- ~~(o)~~ (o) Dispensing liquid and or other waste products from mobile food vehicle on to city, public, and private property.
- ~~e) Conducting business less than two thousand (2,000) feet away from any food service business.~~

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its adoption and publication, as provided by law.